
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

I hereby certify that I have posted a copy of this agenda at the following locations: 

  □ Administration Building                   □ Library                       □ Post Office 

___________________________________________ / ___________________ 

Name      Date 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


2



3



4



5



6



7



 1 

 2 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 3 

TUESDAY, JULY 28, 2015 4 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 5 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 6 
 7 
The July 28, 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson Dave 8 
Lienau at 5:36 P.M. 9 
 10 
Present:  Chairperson Lienau, and members Shane Solomon, Scott Baker, Don Howard, Marge 11 
Grutzmacher, Eric Lundquist and Nate Bell.  12 
 13 
Others:  Brandon Small, Al Gokey, John Maas, Denise Bhirdo, Ron Kane, Bill Wegehaupt, 14 
Steve and Marge Musinsky, John Maas, Connie Carlson, Norbert and Ellen Ritt, Alison Beadell, 15 
Simon Werner, Jill Hanley and three other individuals. 16 
 17 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz 18 
 19 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 20 
Lienau noted that no new correspondence had been received. He then asked if anyone wished 21 
to comment regarding a non-agenda item.  22 
 23 
Connie Carlson of Beacon Marine requested that Beacon Marine be allowed to display a 24 
couple of boats on their grassy lot. Jackson noted that in order to do that a Zoning Code text 25 
amendment would be required.  26 
 27 
Denise Bhirdo indicated that it is her understanding that the Village Administrator has 28 
determined that the propane tank for a home on Maple Drive is not in the front yard, but she 29 
disagrees. Therefore, she took a photo of that home and e-mailed it to the Village President 30 
with a request that the matter be referred to the Plan Commission. 31 
 32 
Bhirdo also indicated that she does not believe the designated parking areas on Bay Shore 33 
Drive are set back far enough from the intersections, and, therefore, safety issues could arise. It 34 
was the consensus that this issue shall be referred to the Parks, Properties & Streets Committee 35 
as well as the Bay Shore Drive Oversight Committee. 36 
 37 
Approval of the agenda: 38 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Grutzmacher that the Agenda for the July 28, 39 
2015 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 40 
 41 
Approval of minutes as published: 42 
As to the minutes for the June 24, 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission: 43 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher seconded by Solomon that the minutes for the June 24, 44 
2015 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 45 
  46 
 47 
 48 
 49 

8



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -2-  

 

Business Items: 1 
Item No. 1. Public Hearing on a request to amend §66.0320(c) of the Zoning Code in such 2 
fashion that quarries are allowed as a conditional use in the B-1 General Business District; 3 
Discussion on a request to amend §66.0320(c) of the Zoning Code in such fashion that 4 
quarries are allowed as a conditional use in the B-1 General Business District; and consider a 5 
motion for action to recommend approval of Ordinance 235, which amends §66.0320(c) of 6 
the Zoning Code: 7 
Lienau explained that a public hearing would be conducted this evening regarding Brandon 8 
Small’s request to amend the Zoning Code in such fashion that quarries are allowed as a 9 
conditional use in the B-1 General Business District. If the Commission determines that the 10 
amendment should be made, a referral will be made to the Village Board. Further, if an 11 
application for a Conditional Use Permit is actually filed, another public hearing will be 12 
required. If the Commission denies Small’s request there is no guarantee that “this will be the 13 
end of it” as the matter is in mediation. 14 
 15 
At 5:40 P.M. Lienau called the public hearing on a request to amend §66.0320(c) of the Zoning 16 
Code for the Village of Sister Bay in such fashion that quarries are allowed as a conditional use 17 
in the B-1 General Business District to order. 18 
 19 
Bill Wegehaupt of 10579 Fieldcrest Road indicated that he is against allowing quarries as a 20 
conditional use in the B-1 General Business District as it will have negative impacts on the 21 
people who live in the surrounding residential neighborhood. The dust from the current quarry 22 
operation goes everywhere and the noise is very distracting. 23 
 24 
Steve Musinsky of 10519 Fieldcrest Road indicated that he also is opposed to allowing quarries 25 
as a conditional use in the B-1 General Business District. He then read a prepared statement 26 
aloud, and also indicated that if a home is in close proximity to a quarry the ability of a 27 
homeowner to actually obtain a mortgage could be affected.    28 
 29 
Brandon Small indicated that he understands the neighbors’ concerns about the quarry, but 30 
pointed out that the current quarry could be operated for an indefinite period of time. If the 31 
new proposal is accepted the quarry would be shut down in ten years and a reclamation plan 32 
would have to be adhered to. 33 
 34 
At 6:01 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment, and when no one responded he 35 
declared that the public hearing was closed. 36 
 37 
Howard indicated that he hasn’t heard anything this evening which convinces him that quarries 38 
should be allowed as a conditional use. 39 
 40 
Solomon noted that he realizes there are “two sides to the story”, but based upon what he 41 
heard this evening he believes the quarry operations should remain as they are right now as 42 
eventually the useful life of the quarry will expire. 43 
 44 
Lundquist pointed out that whatever action the Commission takes “it’s a gamble”. He also 45 
stated that he believes the adjoining property owners should be fully advised of what is being 46 
proposed and what the consequences of that proposal could be. Several of the Commission 47 
members concurred.   48 
 49 

9



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -3-  

 

Denise Bhirdo noted that if a text amendment is made it would be possible to impose a “sunset 1 
clause”. 2 
 3 
A motion was made by Bell, seconded by Grutzmacher that Agenda Item No. 1 - Discussion on 4 
a request to amend §66.0320(c) of the Zoning Code in such fashion that quarries are allowed 5 
as a conditional use in the B-1 General Business District, shall be tabled until the next meeting 6 
of the Plan Commission so that the Commission members will have an opportunity to obtain 7 
public input on this issue. To that end, prior to that meeting a fact sheet/notice shall be sent to 8 
all the individuals who own property within 1,000 feet of the existing and proposed quarry 9 
operations. Motion carried – All ayes. 10 
 11 
Item No. 2. Discussion on a request to amend a Conditional Use Permit for Alison Beadell of 12 
2259 Scandia Rd; Consider a motion for action if necessary: 13 
On October 8, 2013 the Village Board approved Ordinance No. 219, which granted a 14 
Conditional Use Permit for a second dwelling unit at 2259 Scandia Road to Alison Beadell, but 15 
to date she has not made any of the building modifications mentioned in that permit. Beadell 16 
has now requested that her Conditional Use Permit be amended as she would like to change 17 
her building plans. A copy of the revised plans was included in the meeting packets. 18 
 19 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Solomon that Alison Beadell’s request to amend 20 
her Conditional Use Permit for the property located at 2259 Scandia Road is approved as 21 
presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 22 
 23 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding Paul Vandermaazen’s request for a permit to erect a 6’, salt-24 
treated wooden privacy fence in the front yard at 10397 STH 57; Consider a motion for 25 
action if necessary: 26 
Paul VanderMazzen has requested that he be allowed to erect a 6’, salt-treated wooden privacy 27 
fence in the front yard of his residence located at 10397 STH 57. The Zoning Code does not 28 
allow fencing in the front yard unless the Plan Commission grants approval. VanderMazzen 29 
would like to install the fence on top of already existing berms which surround his garage as he 30 
believes the fencing would help eliminate highway noise and allow for more privacy. 31 
 32 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Howard that a permit shall be issued to Paul 33 
Vandmaazen to erect a 6’ salt-treated wooden privacy fence in the front yard at 10397 STH 57. 34 
Motion failed with Lienau, Bell, Grutzmacher, Baker and Lienau opposed. 35 
 36 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that a permit shall be issued to Paul 37 
Vandmaazen to erect the 6’ salt-treated wooden privacy fence which is described in the 38 
document which was included in the meeting packets at 10397 STH 57, but that fence may not 39 
be erected on top of the existing berm. Motion failed with Lienau, Bell, Lundquist and 40 
Grutzmacher opposed. 41 
 42 
Item No. 4. Discussion on a request for approval of fence materials by Norbert and Ellen Ritt 43 
of 10786 N. Spring Road; Consider a motion for action if appropriate: 44 
Norbert and Ellen Ritt have requested that they be allowed to erect a 48” cedar split rail fence 45 
with a mesh wire backing in the side and back yards at 10786 N. Spring Road to prevent their 46 
dog from running away. 47 
 48 

10



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -4-  

 

A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Howard that Norbert and Ellen Ritt shall be 1 
allowed to erect the fence which is described on the documentation which was included in the 2 
meeting packets at 10786 N. Spring Road as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 3 
 4 
Item No. 5. Review and discussion on Al Gokey’s preliminary plan submission for two 5 
adjoining CSM requests and a PUD request for the property known as the “Old School 6 
Property” at 10604 STH 57; Consider a motion to proceed to public hearing: 7 
Preliminary Site Plans, Utility Plans, Grading and Drainage Plans, and drafts of two CSM’s 8 
which were submitted by Al Gokey on behalf of Harbor View, LLC for the Old School Property 9 
at the intersection of STH 57 and STH 42 were included in the meeting packets, and the 10 
Commission members jointly reviewed all of that documentation. There are now six lots within 11 
the development rather than seven. The question arose as to whether or not there should be a 12 
public or private road within the development, and Gokey indicated that the costs would be 13 
astronomical if he were required to install a public road on his property. He also noted that 14 
whatever type of road is constructed it will not be a “through street”.    15 
 16 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that a public hearing shall be conducted 17 
on Al Gokey’s preliminary plan submission for the two adjoining CSM’s and a PUD which were 18 
reviewed at this meeting for the property which is commonly referred to as the “Old School 19 
Property” at 10604 STH 57. Motion carried – All ayes. 20 
 21 
Item No. 6. Discussion on the U.S. Supreme Court case which is entitled Reed v. Town of 22 
Gilbert, AZ; Review of relevant sections of the Sister Bay Zoning Code, (§66.0720, §66.0721, 23 
and §66.0722), and discussion on the implications of that case: 24 
Jackson introduced Cody Garris, who is serving an internship with the Village, and asked that 25 
Garris explain the implications of the Supreme Court case which is entitled “Reed v. Town of 26 
Gilbert, AZ”. Based upon that case the Village’s Sign Code could be challenged in Court. In a 27 
rare unanimous decision the Court struck down a local government’s Sign Code as a violation 28 
of the freedom of speech guaranteed by the First Amendment. Discussion took place regarding 29 
this issue, and it was eventually the consensus that the Village’s current sign regulations shall 30 
stand.       31 
 32 
Item No. 7. Discussion on the Village of Sister Bay Sign Code: 33 
Grutzmacher noted that a number of banners have been erected at the corner of Mill Road and 34 
N. Bay Shore Drive, and believes that display is quite unsightly and could be considered 35 
“overkill”.  36 
 37 

It was the consensus that the Village’s Maintenance Department employees shall be 38 

asked to make a concerted effort to see that any banners which are erected on the 39 

Village’s banner posts are displayed in a tasteful fashion.     40 
 41 
Grutzmacher also noted that she has heard comments that the Parks Committee and the Marina 42 
Committee have granted permission for a mural to be painted on the Boathouse, and asked if 43 
this is a permitted activity. It is her contention that before any final decisions are made 44 
regarding the mural content a referral should be made to the Plan Commission.   45 
 46 
The Commission members requested that a draft of a Mural Code be prepared and presented to 47 
them at a future meeting.   48 
  49 

11



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -5-  

 

Item No. 8. Discussion regarding §66.0501(b)(3)(e) - Accessory buildings in the Front Yard 1 
Setback Area; Consider a motion for action if necessary: 2 
Lee Callum indicated that he would like to construct a two car garage on his property, but the 3 
preferred location is technically considered to be the “front yard”. It is his understanding that 4 
§66.0501 of the Zoning Code states that accessory buildings are not permitted in front yards. In 5 
the past requests such as this were referred to the Zoning Board of Appeals, but Jackson is 6 
unsure that Callum would be able to prevail as he would have to prove that there is a 7 
“hardship”. 8 
 9 
Jackson believes it would be best for requests such as this to be considered on a case-by-case 10 
basis. If this were to occur the requests would have to be treated as a conditional use. 11 
 12 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Bell that a Zoning Code text amendment which 13 
states that accessory buildings shall be allowed in the front yard setback area of the R-1 District 14 
as a conditional use shall be drafted and presented to the Plan Commission members at their 15 
next meeting. Motion carried – All ayes.     16 
 17 
Item No. 9. Discussion on conversion of Mariners Pointe Dr. from a public road to a private 18 
road; Consider a motion to refer for further action: 19 
Representatives of the Mariners Pointe Homeowner’s Association have expressed concerns that 20 
since construction has started on the Old Ballfield Property traffic within their development has 21 
increased dramatically. They are wondering if Village officials would consider converting 22 
Mariners Point Drive from a public road to a private road. 23 
 24 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Grutzmacher that the Village is not interested in 25 
converting Mariners Point Drive to a private road. Motion carried – All ayes. 26 
 27 
Item No. 10. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 28 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 29 
Jackson gave the following oral report: 30 
 31 

  Work on the Bay Shore Drive Line Burial Project is substantially completed. 32 

  Work is progressing on the Sledding Hill. Hockers Excavating will complete this project 33 
once all the work on the beach has been completed. 34 

  The anticipated substantial completion date for the Beach Reconstruction Project is 35 
August 6th. There were cost under-runs, and the Parks Committee decided to use those 36 
funds to construct a reclaimed paver sidewalk around the entire beach. The pavers were 37 
taken out of the brick parking lot on the former Helm’s property. The swim buoy permit 38 
was just received last week. 39 

  Midwest Sunsplash is scheduled for August 7th and 8th.  40 

  The search for a new Finance Director will resume at the end of July. One of the Parks 41 
employees will be on medical leave for three to four months, and Joe Baldarotta will be 42 
returning as the Ice Rink Manager. 43 

  Sales are up considerably at the Marina. The Marina Guest Events have also been a huge 44 
success. 45 

  Movies in the Park are being conducted on a regular basis and data is being compiled 46 
regarding attendance rates. 47 

  The Village’s website has been entirely refurbished but there still are a few “kinks” which 48 
have to be worked out. 49 

12



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -6-  

 

  Construction has started on the Niagara Ridge Development. 1 

  Keith Garot has not met the deadline agreed to in his Development Agreement, but 2 
Jackson just learned that revisions were made to the engineering plans for that 3 
development. 4 

  Enforcement letters were sent to four individuals regarding an unscreened propane tank, 5 
unkempt vegetation and illegal parking of a boat(s). 6 

  He made four site visits and spoke with the owners/occupants of those properties 7 
regarding placement of a machine in the right-of-way, an unpermitted sandwich board 8 
sign, an unpermitted real estate sign, and display of unpermitted fireworks. 9 

 10 
Jesse Johnson has placed a temporary goat pen in front of The Creamery. Such an appurtenance 11 
is technically not permitted.  12 
 13 
Discussion took place regarding the goat pen issue, and it was eventually the consensus that 14 
Jackson shall contact Jesse Johnson and inform him that if he wants to continue to display goats 15 
in the pen after the work is completed on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project, he must 16 
submit a Zoning Permit Application and appear before the Plan Commission.    17 
  18 
Item No. 11. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 19 
Committee, Official or Employee: 20 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 21 
committee, official or employee: 22 
 23 

 The Plan Commission will be asked to determine whether or not the propane tank 24 
Denise Bhirdo referred to at the beginning of this meeting is in the front yard of a 25 
residence on Maple Drive. 26 

 At the August Plan Commission Meeting a public input session shall be conducted on a 27 
request to amend §66.0320(c) of the Zoning Code in such fashion that quarries are 28 
allowed as a conditional use in the B-1 General Business District. Prior to that meeting a 29 
fact sheet/notice shall be sent to all the individuals who own property within 1,000 feet 30 
of the existing and proposed quarry operations.  31 

  At the August Plan Commission Meeting a public hearing shall be conducted regarding 32 
Al Gokey’s preliminary plan submission for two adjoining CSM’s and a PUD for the 33 
property which is commonly referred to as the “Old School Property” at 10604 STH 57. 34 

  At the August meeting of the Plan Commission a draft of a Zoning Code text amendment 35 
which states that accessory buildings shall be allowed in the front yard setback area of 36 
the R-1 District as a conditional use will be considered. 37 

  The downtown parking space safety issues which Denise Bhirdo referred to at the 38 
beginning of this meeting shall be referred to the Parks, Properties & Streets Committee 39 
and the Bay Shore Drive Oversight Committee. 40 

   A draft of a Mural Code shall be prepared and presented to the Plan Commission for 41 
consideration at a future meeting. 42 

  The Village’s Maintenance Department employees shall be asked to make a concerted 43 
effort to see that any banners which are erected on the Village’s banner posts are 44 
displayed in a tasteful fashion. 45 

  The Plan Commission will consider Beacon Marine’s request to allow parking of boats in 46 
the R-1 District at a future meeting, and, if that request is deemed to be appropriate, 47 
recommend a proper course of action. 48 
 49 

13



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Plan Com\2015\2015_07\word files\072815 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved 
Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on July 28, 2015; Last Printed: 8/12/2015 2:18 PM 

 -7-  

 

Adjournment: 1 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 2 
Commission at 9:17 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 3 
 4 
Respectfully submitted,  5 

 6 
Janal Suppanz,  7 
Assistant Administrator 8 

14



Name: i:\1. 2015 agendas\plan com\2015\2015_08\01 082615 notice-pub hearing - quarries as conditional use in b1.docx Creat-
ed: 8/4/2015 1:02 PM Printed: 8/21/2015 2:55 PM Author: Robert L. Kufrin Last Saved By: Janal.Suppanz Revision:  

15

http://www.sisterbaywi.info/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov
http://www.sisterbaywi./


16



17



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

18



Sister Bay Quarry Talking Points 

The following is in response to the points from the previous meeting requiring more discussion. 

1.  Quarry operations will cease 10 years from the date of approved reclamation plan and 

the quarry will operate a maximum of 40 hours per week. (Details in point 7) 

5. Access will be off 42 and the gravel road will be sprayed with Envirohold to control dust.  

http://www.enviroholdusa.com/  Here is what is stated on the website regarding dust: It’s 

ideal for keeping dust under control.  Spray EnviroHold on dirt, sand, and gravel pathways, 

driveways and roads.  EnviroHold is your best solution wherever dust and erosion is a 

problem. 

6. We will happily split the cost of the officially mapped streets directly abutting our land 

with the other abutting property owners.  I feel this is very fair as we will be closing an active 

quarry and paying for the reclamation.  I spoke with Lori Flick of Door Real Estate and asked 

how an active quarry affects the abutting owners’ property values.  Her response was she 

could not put an exact number on it but most buyers will not even consider purchasing 

property next to an active quarry.  The planned closure of the quarry will drastically increase 

property values. 

7. A more specific breakdown of the quarry operating hours: 

 March through September 6:00 am through 4:30 pm Monday through Thursday 

 October through November 7:00 am through 3:30 pm Monday through Friday 

8. Having spoke with Door County Soil and Water as well as the Mining Safety and Health 

Administration a new quarry does not need any buffer but would require a berm height of 

three feet.  There are no restrictions on what the berm is made of.  I anticipate the berm 

height easily exceed the minimum state requirement.  There are two feet of topsoil on the 

remaining land that would be used to support the berms and ultimately to reclaim the quarry.   

The waste stone will not be crushed and also go to support the berms.  I would like to point 

out the current quarry has a minimal amount of waste stone (crushed) and topsoil (sold off 

years ago).  The quarry can never go to the lot line as the berms must be there. 

11.  There was a question regarding the use of strobe lights instead of the backup alarms.  

Having researched this and spoke with the Mining Safety and Health Administration I was 

told the stobe lighting is only acceptable for nighttime operation.  During the day the 

equipment must have an audible alarm. 

12.  Having tested the soil, we have found there is two feet of topsoil.  This would mean no 

rock excavation 12 feet below the existing surface. 

15. I would like to see this removed. 

19

http://www.enviroholdusa.com/


16.  Should the quarry be sold all requirements of the conditional use permit will transfer to 

the new owner. 

 

I feel these tweaks to the original talking points are fair compromises.  I have spent a lot of 

time of this and am agreeing to undertake significant extra expense to see this project go 

through.  Although we under no crushing restrictions currently in a good faith offering to the 

Village I have declined to have crushing done this year.  This resulted in an unhappy 

customer and lost revenue but I am very committed to moving forward with this.  I ask your 

approval to go before the Village Board and then begin the reclamation plan. 

 

Brandon Small 

(920) 213-7792 

 

   

 

   

 

20



ORDINANCE № 235-XXXX15 

An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code Sections 
66.0320(c) B-1  Conditional Uses  

 

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

NOW, THEREFORE,

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY

ATTEST:

21



Name: h:\active\sister bay\projects village\lawsuits\small quarry lawsuit\plan commission report\ord 235 - xxxx15 chapter 66 b-1 district add quarry as 

conditional use v4.docx Created: 6/8/2015 11:28 AM Printed: 6/15/2015 10:14 AM6/15/2015 10:14:00 AM Author: Robert L. Kufrin Last Saved By: Robert 

Kufrin Revision: 5 Last Save Date: 

22



Business Districts 

Sec. 66.0320 B-1 General Business District 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

23



 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

24



 

 

Name: h:\active\sister bay\projects village\lawsuits\small quarry 

lawsuit\plan commission report\ord 235 - xxxx15 chapter 66 b-1 district 

add quarry as conditional use v4.docx Created: 6/8/2015 11:28 AM 

Printed: 6/15/2015 10:14 AM6/15/2015 10:14:00 AM Author: Robert L. 

Kufrin Last Saved By: Robert Kufrin Revision: 5 Last Save Date:  

25



26



Definitions 

Alteration.  Any change to the Permitted Original Art Mural, including but not limited to any change to the image(s), materials, colors or size of 

the Permitted Original Art Mural.  “Alteration” does not include naturally occurring changes to the Permitted Original Art Mural caused by 

exposure to the elements or the passage of time.  Minor changes to the Permitted Original Art Mural which result from the maintenance or 

repair of the Permitted Original Art Mural shall not constitute “alteration” of the Permitted Original Art Mural within the meaning of this Title.  

This can include slight and unintended deviations from the original image, colors or materials that occur when the Permitted Original Art Mural 

is repaired due to the passage of time, or as a result of vandalism such as graffiti. 

 

Changing Image Mural.  A mural that, through the use of moving structural elements, flashing or sequential lights, lighting elements, or other 

automated method, results in movement, the appearance of movement or change of mural image or message. Changing image murals do not 

include otherwise static murals where illumination is turned off and back on not more than once every 24 hours. 

 

Compensation.  The exchange of something of value.  It includes, without limitation, money, securities, real property interest, barter of goods 

or services, promise of future payment, or forbearance of debt.  “Compensation” does not include:  

 1.  goodwill; or 

 2.  an exchange of value that a building owner (or leaseholder with a right to possession of the wall upon which the mural is to be placed) 

provides to an artist, muralist or other entity where the compensation is only for the creation and/or maintenance of the mural on behalf of the 

building owner or leaseholder, and the building owner or leaseholder fully controls the content of the mural. 

 

Grade.  The lowest point of elevation of the finished surface of the ground, paving, or sidewalk within the area between the building and the 

property line or, when the property line is more than 5 feet from the building, between the building and a line 5 feet from the building (the 

Uniform Building Code as amended by the State).  

  

Original Art Mural.  A hand-produced work of visual art which is tiled or painted by hand directly upon, or affixed directly to an exterior wall of 

a building.  Original Art Mural does not include: 

 1.  mechanically produced or computer generated prints or images, including but not limited to digitally printed vinyl; 

 2.  murals containing electrical or mechanical components; or 

 3.  changing image murals. 

 

Permitted Original Art Mural.  An Original Art Mural for which a permit has been issued by the Village of Sister Bay pursuant to this section. 

 

Public Right-of-Way.  An area that allows for the passage of people or goods, that has been dedicated or deeded to the public for public use.  

Public Rights-of-Way include passageways such as highways, pedestrian connections, alleys, and all streets. 

 

Ordinance 66.0714-Murals 

Original Art Murals that meet all of the following criteria shall be a conditional use approved by the Plan Commission and will be considered 

upon satisfaction of the applicable permit requirements: 

 A.  No part of the mural shall exceed 20 feet in height measured from grade, nor contain any text. 

 B.  The mural shall remain in place, without alterations, for a period of five years, except in limited circumstances to be specified by the Plan 

Commission.  The applicant shall certify in the permit application that the applicant agrees to maintain the mural in place for a period of five 

years without alteration. 

 C.  The mural shall not extend more than 18 inches from the plane of the wall upon which it is tiled or painted or to which it is affixed. 

D.  Murals on may be placed on residential buildings with more than four dwelling units. 

E.  Murals for which compensation is given or received for the display of the mural or for the right to place the mural on another’s property.  

The applicant shall certify in the permit application that no compensation will be given or received for the display of the mural or the right to 

place the mural on the property. 

F.  No mural shall be located in a Right of Way, nor designed in such a way as to interfere with, or emulate traffic signage. 

G.  No mural may use reflective surfaces which may interfere with the safety of traveling pedestrians, bicyclists or vehicles. 

H.  No mural may be placed over an opening in a building such as a door, window or vent. 

I.  Murals must conform to 66.0752, Color and Lighting. 

27



28



29



30



�����������	�
	����������� ����������	
��������
�������������	���
��

�

�

��

����������	�
�������������������������	��������������������������

���
	����
��������������������������������������������������
����������������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�������������������
��������������������������������������	����������������	�
������������������������������������������������

���
	��
�������������������������������
������������������������������������� �!���������	���
�����������
����������������������"#����� �
���������������	��
����������������������������	���� �����������

�������	
�	���	��	�����
Map
Printed 08/21/2015 courtesy of Door County Land Information Office

31



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 08/26/15  
            Item No.: 6 
 
Activities: 
  
Line Burial-Work on the Bay Shore Dr. Line Burial project is substantially completed.  Crews from Vinton 
have surveyed final locations of transformers and telecom equipment and have discovered a few conflicts.  
DOT will coordinate with Vinton and WPS to ensure that conflicts are dealt with appropriately.  We still do 
not have a final project total as of this writing. 
 
Sledding Hill- Work starts and stops on the project, largely around the Beach and excavation of materials 
there.  Roughly 1000 yards of cobble still needs to be removed from the beach to make way for the new 
sidewalk.  Hockers will complete this project after the Beach has been completed. 
 
Beach- the beach is substantially completed, and work will recommence in the fall once planned plantings 
become dormant.  Finishing landscaping will be completed at that time as well.  The encroachment on the 
Stage seating area is being worked on by JJR. 
 
Sunsplash- Sunsplash took place with both Sun and Splash.  Friday was a rain out.  Saturday cleared up, 
and approximately 1350 people attended.  Final financial figures are not in, however, preliminary estimates 
indicate that we not only recovered our initial $15,000 investment, but returned a modest sum on top of 
that.  Numerous complaints were lodged by neighbors (almost all SB Yacht Club) regarding noise intensity, 
duration, and choice of music. We have a representative sample, economic impact survey out to commer-
cial meter customers to assess Sunsplash.  The Village has 60 days to exercise its renewal option.  Staff rec-
ommends if this event is held in the future, that it is changed to a single day event, with a shift to quality of 
artists as opposed to quantity (Ziggy Marley, Shaggy, ect).  We also recommend that the agreement be ad-
justed to reflect the level of involvement that staff expended in making the present event a success.  
 
Niagara Ridge- Construction is underway, and we look forward to 36 new apartments soon. 
 
Harbor View-Preliminary plans have been reviewed by Plan Commission and approved.  The Developer, 
engineers and DOT are working to prepare for the next phase of approval. 
 
Stony Ridge- Mr. Garot has not met deadlines agreed to in the development agreement.  Engineering work 
has been completed.  An email  from 7/14 to him and his expeditor has not been returned.  Mr. Garot con-
tact me on the week of 8/7 to let me know that they were still “good” and would be working on a rebid.  
Stormwater management exceeded budget expectations by $300,000.  Spoke with Jared Schmidt of REL on 
8/13, indicated that rebid would occur “pretty soon” and hoped results would be better.  I have instructed 
Ms. Baker to repay the outstanding loan with Baylake Bank; we will take another loan out once Mr. Garot 
has completed what is required to move ahead. 
 
Personnel- The search for a new finance director will resume; Janal is working to place advertising as of 
this writing.  Duties of the Finance Director have been split between existing staff. 
 
Marina- The season continues to be on target.  Some accounting still needs to be resolved.  Seasonal slip 
revenues are near all time highs, and transient rentals are in line to be at or near all time highs. 
 

32



Marketing- Jaws was a hit with audiences, and other movies have been modestly been attended.  The Mar-
keting Staff procured a generator for popcorn, ice cream and movies when the power went out in the Au-
gust Storm.  Sunsplash looks to have recovered the initial $15,000 investment; an economic impact survey 
was sent to a representative sample of approximately 75 commercial meter holders  
 
We should plan for a festival vendor plan for 2016 for Waterfront Park, and need engage in a visioning 
process for the marketing plan for 2016 as well. 
 
Other marketing efforts center around Marinafest, and the Ice Rink.  
 
Staff has sent out the Summer newsletter as well as the first citizen survey.  We anticipate having results for 
the September Board Meeting. 
 
Code Violations: 

 10860 Bay Shore Dr.: Vehicles parking on unimproved surface. 
 2398 Country Walk Dr.: Unkempt yard 
 10653 Bay Shore Dr: 30.2 Drainage Nuisance 
 10653 Bay Shore Dr: Goat Pen 

Permits Issued 

 Accessory Building-2458 S. Bay Shore Dr. 
 Sign Permit-Temp Banner Permit-Village Hall-Sue Donohue 
 Sign Permit, After the fact, Silverbirch Store-10668 Bay Shore Dr. 
 Accessory Building 10645 Meadow Ln 
 Accessory Building 10874 Birchwood Dr. 

 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: unknown for the future. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33




